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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Plus Medicare Hospitals Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statemenis

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Plus Medicare Hospitals Private Limited
{‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations agiven to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information reguired by the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
{'Ind AS") specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

Ve conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Qur responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India {*ICAI" together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Plus Medicare Hospitals Private Limited, on the
Audit of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont'd)

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are respaonsible for the other information. Other information does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial staterments does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Directors' Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of Directors. The
Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstaterment
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control; S HAR
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» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adeguate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation;

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not
applicable to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section 2(71)
of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order') issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit,
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial
statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters stated in paragraph
12(h}{vi) below on reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(as amended). Further, the back-up of the books of accounts and other books and papers of the
Company maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on servers physically located in
India, on a daily basis;

¢} The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act;

Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor’'s Report to the Members of Plus Medicare Hospitals Private Limited, on the
Audit of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {Cont'd)

g) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

fi The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph 12(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 12(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended);

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of
our infarmation and according to the explanations given to us;

i,

iv.a.

V.

The Company does not have any pending litigation(s) which would impact its financial position
as at 31 March 2024;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024.;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024,

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 43c to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the
intermediaries'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Uliimate
Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 43d to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2024.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Plus Medicare Hospitals Private Limited, on the
Audit of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont'd)

vi.  As stated in note 44 to the financial statements and based on our examination which included
test checks, except for instances mentioned below, the Company, in respect of financial year
commencing on 01 April 2023, has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of
aceount which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same have been
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with, other than the consequential impact of the exceptions given below.

i The accounting software used from 01 April 2023 to 01 June 2023 for maintenance of
accounting records for one location of the Company did not have a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility. Further, the Company migrated to another accounting
software from 02 June 2023 for maintenance of accounting records of such location,
however, the accounting software did not capture the details of who made the changes
i.e., User ID.

i, The audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level for accounting software to
log any direct data changes, used for maintenance of revenue, inventory and
consumption records by the Company.

iil. The Company has used another accounting software for maintenance of books of
accounts which is operated by a third-party software service provider. In the absence
of any information on existence of audit trail (edit logs) for any direct changes made at
the database level in the ‘Independent Service Auditor's Assurance Report on the
Description of Controls, their Design and Operating Effectiveness’ (‘Type 2 report
issued in accordance with ISAE 3000, Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information), we are unable to comment on whether
audit trail feature with respect to the database of the said software was enabled and
operated throughout the year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Tarun Gupta
Partner

Membership No.: 507822
UDIN: 24507892BKEITW1173

Place: Gurugram
Date; 13 June 2024
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Plus Medicare Hospitals Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examinad by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(i) (a)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress
and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assels.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and

equipment, capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets under which
the assets are physically verified in 2 phased manner over a period of three years, which
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment, and
relevant details of right-of-use assets were verified during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the lessee) disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements are held in the name of the
Company. For title deeds of immovable properties in the nature of land and building
situated at Plot No. 01,Shobhagpura, Land In Khasra No. 847, 875, 876, 877, and Plot No.
2a, Shobhagpura, Land In Khasra No. 878 in Udaipur with gross carrying values of INR
547.15 million as at 31 March 2024 (net carrying value of INR 627.53 million as at 31 March
2024), which have been mortgaged as security for loans or borrowings taken by the
Company, confirmations with respect to title of the Company have been directly obtained
by us from the respective lenders.

The Company has adopted cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment including right-
of-use assets and intangible assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Order’) is not
applicable to the Company.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any

benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder,

(i} (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during

the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventary
were noticed as compared to book records.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR 50.00 million by
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company. S
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Plus Medicare Hospitals Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024 (cont'd)

(iii)

(v}

(vi)

(a)

(b)

The Company has not made any investment in, provided any security or granted any advances
in the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships during the year. Further,
the Company has provided guarantee to companies during the year, in respect of which:

The Company has provided guarantees to Holding Company during the year as per details
given below:

Guarantee

Particulars (%) in millions

Aggregate amount provided/granted during the year: |
| - Halding Company 1,856.14

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases!

- Holding Company 1,856.14

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, guarantees
provided and terms and conditions of the guarantees provided are, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the interest of the Company. Further, the Company has not made any
investments, given any security, granted any loans and and advances in the nature of loans
during the year.

The Company does not have any outstanding loans and advances in the nature of loans at
the beginning of the current year nor has granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii){e) and
3({iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of guaraniees
provided, as applicable. Further, the Company has not entered into any transaction
covered under section 185 and section 186 of the Act in respect of loans granted,
investment made and security provided by it.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies {Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{v} of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Gompany's products/ services / business
activities. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

Charterad Accountants
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Plus Medicare Hospitals Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024 {cont’d)

{vii) {a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight
delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b

—

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute,

{viii)y According to the information and explanations given to us, no fransactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books
of accounts.

{ix} (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received
from the management of the Company, and on the basis of cur audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

{c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised
by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short
term basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes,

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Gompany does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order i= not applicable to the Company.

(¥) {a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the period covered by our audit,

(k) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

f : | IJ" ?. ) ]
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Plus Medicare Hospitals Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024 (cont'd)

(c)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to

it. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind A3) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section
133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to and
consequently, does not have an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India

(d

e

{ewil)

(el

(xix)

(xx)

Act, 1934, Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3{xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to INR 358.53 in the current financial year
but had not incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information in the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors
and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
and unconditional support letter provided by the Holding Company to extend operational and
financial support to the Company as referred to in note 45 to the accompanying financial
statements, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not meet the
criteria as specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause 3(xx)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.f_. ”,’;E;-;';T:Tf:'{v.:f?}_\
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the
members of Plus Medicare Hospitals Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024 {cont’d)

(xxi)  The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Mo.: 001076N/N500013

Tarun Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 507882

UDIN: 24507892BKEITW1173

Place: Gurugram
Date: 13 June 2024
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Plus
Medicare Hospitals Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Plus Medicare Hospitals Private Limited
Private Limited (‘the Company') as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act,

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the IGAIl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adeguate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Qur auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
ar error.

5. \We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Charterad Accountants
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Plus
Medicare Hospitals Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024 (cont'd)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial co ntrols with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

7 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of contrals, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024,
based on the internal financial cantrol with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountanis of India.

Far Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accounfanis
Firm's Registration No.; 001076N/N500013

— o

Tarun Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 507892

UDIN: 24507892BKEITW1173

Place: Gurugram
Date: 13 June 2024

Chariersd Accountants



ius Medicare Hospitals Private Limited
CIN o UBSTIHRZONPTOCIISTHT
BEalance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

(Al amounts are in INIE million, unless otherwise siated)

Purliculnrs Maotes
ASSETS
Non-currcnt asseis
Property, planl and eguipnent 4
Kighl-uluse wssels 3
Capilal work-in progress f
Initangibie assats 7
Financial assets
Cither financial asseis b
Mon-cument fax assets (net) 4
Cither nom curment esseis ]
Total non-current assels
Current assets
[nventorics 11
Financial asscts
Trade receivables 12
Cush and cash eguivalents I3
Hank bulances other thin cash and cash equivalonts I4
Oither Gnancial assels B
Oher current azsets iy
Tuolal currend assels
Tntal azsets
FOUITY AMD LIABILITIES
Fauity
Eaquity sharc capital 15
{ither equity 16
Tuotal equity
Linbilities
Mon-cnrrent liahilities
Financial liahilities
Bormowings 1
I.ease luhilities 3
Other financial labililies L&
Other non-current liabilities 19
Provisions 20
T'otal non- eurrent liabilities
Current liabilities
Finaneial linbililies
Dorrowings 174
Leasze liabilities 3
Trade payables 1
- Total outstanding ducs of micrn enterprises and small enierprises; and
- Total outstanding ducs of ereditors other than miceo enlesprises and small enterprises
3ther financial liabilities (]
Other current liabilities (]
Frovisians 20
Tutal eurrent liabilitivs
Tuotal equily and Tabilities
Summary of material aceounting policy infusmilion 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these (nancial slalements.

Az per our reporl of even dale allached
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Moz O01076MNM300013

_-o-'-"____FF
\Wb

Tarun Gupla

Pailnes

Membership Mo, 507892

Place: Gurugram
Drates 12 June 2024

Asat
31 Mareh 2024

Az al
31 Mareh 2023

For and om behelf of Board of Direclors of
Plus Medicare Hospitals Privale Limided

1Jirector
1208 : 08639905

7

The, Sputy Meelivanickal Sajan

Mhinmohan Chippa

CFO

Place: Guugiam

Thates 13 June 2024

R K3 556,53
1.546.50 a5
062 63 85
1.19 -
6581 167
5.84 5.56
3135 13161
ek 14 2,392, 24
3667 -
2.3 -
49,39 T.04
0.22 -
527 0.15
349 |95
57.38 _ 9,14
2,67.52 240140
400,00 400.00
{0250} 143.33
(2.5 543,53
1,320.72 653.47
#6375 Bd45 45
121.02 [18.48
12291 131.41
221 0,21
243061 1,745,002
5042 15,32
T0.48 06773
g4l -
54,34 0.94
735 0.70
2977 24.24
1.0 0.1z
25141 109,05
1,670.51 2,401.400
Milchil Sharma
Dhirector

DM ; OVGHY292

/4

Bharat Snchdey
Comany Secretary
Membership no. AG4503



Plus Medicare [Tospitals Private Limited

CIN - URBSLIOIIRZ0IIPTCLLSTSET

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
(ANl amounts are in INI million, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the vear ended

Kartieninn Aafel 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 22 413.74 o045
Other ineome 23 12.41 12.94
Tuotal income 426.15 7330
Expenses
P'urchases of stock-in-trade 24 107.61 -
Changes in inventories ol stock-in-trade 25 (31.2% =
Emploves benelils expense 26 [48.87 1133
Finunce cosls 27 207.56 4,40
Diepreciation and amortization expense 28 174.33 6957
Relainess and consultants foo 216.74 B
Other cxponscs 29 14451 933
T'otal expenses 97233 133.63
Loss before tax (546.18) (60.24)
Tax expense 3
Currcnt year = e
Neferred Lax credil (nel) - (9830
{Loss) rofit for the year (A) (546,15} 38.07
Other comprehensive income
Tiems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss and their related income tax effects

Femeasurements of defined benelit liability {0,057 &

Tess; Income Lax relaling to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - ) -

Other comprehensive ineome for the yvear, net of tax {B) {i.05) -
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+H) . {546.23) 38.07
Farnings per equily share

Basic and diluted (in INK per share) 31 (13.03) 0.95
Summary of material accounting policy information 3

The accompanying notes arc an intepral part of these Dnancial siatements.
As per our repart of even date allached

For Walleer Chandiok & Co LLI
Chartered Accountants
Firm Repistration Mo; 00 1076MMS000135

Tarun Gupta
Parlner
Membership Mo, 507852

Dircetor

il

Mammaohan Chippa

CF0

Place: Gurogrim
Trate: 13 Tune 2024

131M - (RAISHS

"

Place: Gurngram
Date: 13 Junc 2004

For and on behal ol Board of Directoes of
Plus Medicare Hospitals Privaie Limited

D, Santy Nbéf}ra(iclml Sajan

Mikhil Sharma
Dyirector
1M (9689252

EQ)N Sachidey

Company Secietary
hembership no. AGA503



Plus Medicare Hospitals Frivate Limited

CIN - USSTIOHRIVIIPTCIISTET

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in INK million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Tror the year ended
31 March 2023

A. Cash low from operating activities
Loss before lax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amarlization cxpens:
Finance cosls
Tnterest incomes
T.uas allowance

Addjustiments for chanpes in working capital:
-in lrade receivables
- lnans and assets
-in invenlaries
-in Irucde pavables
-in provisiong and other labilities
Cash (nsed in) generated trom operations
Income taxes paid (net)
MNet cash (nsed in)/ penerated from operating activities

B, Cash flows from investing activities
Payments Tor purchase of property, plant and equipment {including capital work-in-progress,
capilal advances and payable for puchase of property, plant and equipments)
Investments in bank deposits (nel)
Intores! received
Met cash used in investing activities (1)

. Cash flows from linancing activities
'roceeds from non-curent borrowings
hlovement in currenl horrowings (net)
Repayment of non-current borrowings
Payment of interest on lease liabilities
Finance cost paid
Mel cash generated from linancing activities (C)

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+BHC)

T, Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year
Balance with banks:
= Oy curren accounts
Total cash and eash equivalents (refer nole 13)

. Cash and cash eguoivalents as at the end of the year
Tialance with banks;
- (n current accounts
Cush on hand
Tadal cash and cash cquivalents (refer note 13)

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents (E-1¥)

{Thiv spece hos been intentionaily left blank)

(546.18) (60.24)
174.33 69.57
207.56 54.40
(12.41) (12.94)

0.65 [
(176.05) 56.80
(2.43) 0.24
(8.69) 119,57
(36.67) 5
61.80 (0.22)
B 2.14 10,15
(159.90) 186.54
(0.28) (5.56)
(160.18) 180,98
(362.15) (275.25)
(0.22) .
! 165
B (362.37) {27L.60)
646.26 153.57
28.50 -
(16.45) (17.50)
(71.93) i
(61.48) (43.17)
524.90 92.90
2.35 228
o 7.04 176
7.04 4.76
2.71 7.04
0.68 “
9.39 7.04
235 2.28




Plus Medicare Hospitals Private Limited

CIM i« UBSILOHMZ0ITPTCTTSTRT

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
(ANl amounts arve in INIL million, unless ntherwise stated)

Males:

| The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indircet method sel out in Indian Accounting Standard 7 on Statement of cash Mows as notified under seelion

133 of the Companies Act, 20075,
2 Change in liabilitics srising rom lnancing activitics:

Particulars

For the ]-.rcar ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2023

Opening halance
Mon-current bonowings {including curment mulurities)
Loase luhillies

Cash flows

IMroceeds from non-current borrowings
Eepayment of non-corrent horrowings
Proceeds of current bormowings (net)
Payment ol interest on leass liabilitics
Tniterest paid

Mon-cash adjustments

Tnlerest expenses towards lease Habilities

Inferesl on lease capitaliscd

Inferes! expense on borrowings from bemks (including other borrowing, costs)
Interes! expense on loan taken from related parly

Closing balanee

Mon-current borrowings (including current maturities)
Current bormowings

Lease liabilitics

Interest accrued

Summary of material accounting policy information
The accompanying notes arc an integrel parl of these finaneial statements,

As per our report of cven date allached

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLE
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo; 001 07TeRNMA00013

'/KM
Tarun Gupta

Partner
hlembership no. 507897

Place: Gurugram
Date: 13 June 2024

Ll

For and on hehall ol Roard of directors of
Plus Medicare Hospitals Private Limited

74

Irr, Santy Neelivanickal Sajan
Director
DM - OBE39905

ot

MManmaohan Chippa
CT0

Place: Gumgram
Trade: 13 June 2024

AR TS
01318

646,26
(16.15)

28.50
(71.93)
{01.48)

512

774
6585
44.05

134264
28.50
934.20
437

532N

153,57
(17.500

(43.17)

43.17

G687

913,18

>

Milthil Sharma
Director
DM 090RS20

Clontpany Secretary
Membership no. AG4303



IMus Medicare Hospitals Private Limiced

CI - TESTIIIR20LIPTCLISTET

Statement of Changes in Fyuity for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts are in TNIR million, unless otherwise stated)

A, Equity share eapilal

As at 31 March 2024

Asat 3] March 2023

Particulars

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Equity sharces of TNIR 10 each
At the beginning and end of Lhe year 4,00, 00,000 400,00 4,00,00,000 400,00
B, Other equity

Altributable to the equity sharcholders
Particulars RHHIT{S And s“_m!mi Taotal
Lol Retained carnings
Balance ag at 1 April 2021 105,26 105,26
Prafit for the year 3807 38.07
Dalance as at 31 March 2023 143,33 143.33
Lass for (he year (34618} (546 18)
Oither comprehensive income for e year

Re-measurcment loss on defimed benelil plans (net of tax) {005y {0.05)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 {40290} (402.940)
Summary of malerial accounting poliey information 3
The accompanying noles are a integral part of these linencial slalements.
As per our reporl af even date attached
Far Walleer Chandink & Co LLIP For aind on belalt of Board of Directors of
Chartersd Accountants Plus Medicare Hospitals Private Limited

Firm Registration Mo 001076MM0001 3

T

Tarun Gupla
PPartner
hembership Mo, 507892

Idirsctor
DN : 0E639905

N

Manmohan Chippa
CFO

Plaee: Curugram Place: Gurugram
Date: 13 June 20024 Date: 13 June 2024

e

D, Santy Neeliyanicloal Sajan

o

Milzhil Sharma
Dhirectar
LM ;- (9089252

7

Bhirat Sachdey
Conlpany Secrelary
Membership no. Add 503



Plus Medicare Hospitals Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

CIN: - USS110HR2011PTCIISTRT

1. Corporate Information

Ilus Medicare Hospitals Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a company domiciled in India, with ils registered ottice
situated at 1st Floor, Tower- B, Paras Twin Towers, Golf Course Road Sector- 54, Gurugram, 122002, The Company
is & wholly owned subsidiary of Paras Healthcare Private Limited w.e.[ 18 October 2022. The Company is primarily
engaged in the business of providing healtheare and rental services.

2. Basis of preparation of linaneial statements

(i) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Tnd AS) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the
‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 13 June 2024,

Dictails of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Mote 3.

(ii) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are prepared in INR millions, which is the Company’s functional and presentalion
currency. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest millions and two decimals thereol except sharc data and
per share data, unless otherwise stated.

(iii) Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following items:

Items - | Measurement hasis |
Met defined benelil (assct)/ liability | Present value of defined benefit obligations
Certain financial assets and financial liabilitics | Amortized cost

(iv) Recent accounting pronouncement

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) nolifics new standards or amendments o the cxisting standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as issued from lime (o time. For the year ended 31 March
2024, MCA has not notiticd any new standards or amendmenls to the existing standards applicable (o the Company.

(v)  Usc of estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial stalements in conformity with recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS
requires managemenl (o make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application ol accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assels, liabililics, income and expenses as well as disclosures. Actnal results
may differ from these estimales.

Estimates and underlying assumptions arc reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods prospectively.

In particular, information aboul significant areas of estimation, uncerfainly and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amount recognised in the financial statements
perlains to:




Plus Medicare Hospitals Privaie Limited
Notes to finanecial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
CIN: - USS110HR2011PFTC115787

a) Usetul lives and recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The estimated useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets arc based
on eslimales and assumptions regarding the expected market outlook, expected future cash flows, growth rates,
obsolescence, demand, competition, and known technological advances. The charge in respect of periodic
depreciation/amortisation is derived based on an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the cxpected residual
vitlue at the end of its life. The Company reviews the useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and
cquipment and intangible assets al the end of each reporting period.

b) Impairment assessment

At each balance sheet date, based on historical defauli rates observed over expected life, existing market conditions
as well as forward looking estimates, the management assesses the expected credit losscs on outstanding receivables,
Further, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the
default risk associated with industry and country in which the customer operates.

¢} Income taxes

Recognition of deferred tax assets/ liabilities involves making judgements and cstimations about the availability of
firture taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used. A deferred tax assel is recognised for
unused tax losses, deductible temporary differences and MAT credit available, to the exient that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporling date and are reduced to the exlent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realized.

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments in case laws and
the potential outcomes of appeals which may be subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore, the actual results may
vary from expeetations resulting in adjustments (o provisions, the valuation of deferred lax asscts and therefore the
lax charge in the Statement of P'rofit and Loss.

d) Employee benefit obligations

Employee benelit obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valualion involves making
appropriate assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future, These include the determination of
the discount rate, future salary incrcases and mortality rates. Due lo the complexities involved in the valuation and
its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensilive to changes in these assumplions. All assumptions
are revicwed at each reporting date.

¢) Leases:
Critical judgements in determining the leasc term:

Ind AS 116 requires lessees lo defermine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any
option to extend or lerminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an
assessment on the expected lease lerm on a lease-hy-lease basis and there by asscsses whether it is reasonably cerlain
that any options to exlend or terminate the contract will be exercised, In evaluating the lease term, the Company
considers [aclors such as any significant leaschold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to
the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying assel lo Company's aperations taking inlo account
the location of the underlying asset and the availability ol suitable alternatives. The lease term in [uture periods is
reassessed to ensure that the lease term rellects the current economic circumstances.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
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Critical judgements in determining the discount rate:

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specilic to the lease being evaluated or [or a
portfolio of leascs with similar characteristics.

(vi) Measurcment of [air values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an cstablished control framework with respect to
the measurement of fair values. The Company’s Group CFO regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and
valuation adjustments.

Fair values arc categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inpuls used in the valuation
technigues as follows:

Level |: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markels for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 thal arc obscrvable for the asset or liability, either dircetly
(i.c. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived [rom prices).

Level 3: inpuls for the assct or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible.
If the inpuls used to measure the fair value of an assel or a liability fall into different levels of the fair valuc hierarchy,
then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the [air value hierarchy as the lowest
level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy al the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred.

(vii) Current versus non-curreni classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current / non-current classification.
An asset is classificd as current when it satisfies any ol the [ollowing criteria:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) [xpected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for al least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assels are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the [ollowing criteria:

a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) I is duc to be settled within twelve months after the reparting period, or

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

All other liabililies are classified as non-current. gur——

"_"':\\

“fcurrent as'per the Company’s operating cyele and
. Based on }]’r& nature ol products/ services and the

L

All assets and liabililies have been classitied as current or n
other crileria sct out in Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
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time between the acquisilion of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company
has ascertained its operating cycle to be within 12 manths for the purpose of current and non- current classification
of assets and liabilities.

Delerred tax assets and liabilities are classificd as non-current assets and liabilitics.
3. Material accounting policy information

A. Property, plani and equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, il any. Cost of an item of properly, plant and
equipment comprises ils purchase price, including impori dutics and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item (o ils working condition for its intended
use and estimated cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour,
any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and eslimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring Lhe site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an ilem of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then (hey are accounted
for as separale itcms (major components) of property, plant and equipment. All other repair and maintenance costs
are recognised in the statement of prolit and loss as incurred.

(Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of a property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal procceds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or
expense in the stalement of profit and loss.

(ii) Subscquent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the fulure cconomic henefits associated with the
expenditure will flow (o the Company.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is caleulated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over
{heir useful lives mentioned in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, using the written down value except for
leasehold improvements, and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The leasehald improvements are depreciated using straight line method over the primary period of the lease or useful
life of the assels (generally 10 years), whichever is lower.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rala basis i.c. from (upto) the dale on which asset is ready
for use (disposed of).

B. Capital work-in-progress

The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for their intended use is recorded as capilal work-in-progress
before such date. Cost of construction that relaie directly to specific property, plant and equipment and thal arc
aliributable to construction aclivily in general and can be allocated (o specific property, plant and equipment are
included in capital work-in-progress.

A -::?\.

'-'-L CHA

/_'_-":fz.:ﬂ-_h oo, : ; :
Fxpenditure against the asscts arc not ready for their intended yyg4nd mh&@wnﬂ work-in-progress are carried at
cosl, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and att:f:_i_mltahle intergél,

'-._||
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Notes to financial stalements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
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C. TIntangible asscts

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cosl, net of accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. The cost of such assets includes purchase price, licensee [ee, import duties and other taxes and any directly
attributable expenditure to bring the assets to their working condition for intended use.

Amortization methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Intangible assets are amortised @40% p.a on written down value of the asscis. The amortisation period, residual
value and the amorlisation method are reviewed at least at each balance sheet date. If the expected useful life of the
assel is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the differcnee between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in the statement
of profit and loss.

. Tnventories

Inventories of medical drugs, stores and consumables arc measured at the lower of cost and nel realisable value. The
cosl of inventories includes expenditure incurred in acguiring the inventories and other costs in bringing them to their
present condition and location. The cost of the items constituting the inventory is computed on FIFO basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated selling expenses.
"I'he comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.
E. Leases

A lease is defined as ‘a conlract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying assct) for
a period of time in exchange for consideration’.

Classification of lcasces

The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The assessment of the lease is based on several
factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to
extend/purchasc cic.

Recognition and initial measurement

At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use assel and a lease liability on the balance sheet.
The right-of-use assel is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any
initial dircet costs incurred by the Company, an cstimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of
the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in advance of (he lease commencement date (net of any incentives
received).

Subsequent measurement

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-ol-use assct or the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses
the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

At lease commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicil in the lease it that rate is readily available or the
Company’s incremenial borrowing rate. Lease payments included lﬂ}tﬁ’mﬁﬂfhu ement of Lhe leasc liability are made
up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) And”var |¢1b1L\P§yrncntﬁ based on an index or ratc,

Subsequent to inilial measurement, the liability will be reduced/fqr payments ':mrde and increased for interest. It is
151
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re-measured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments.
When the lease liability is re-measured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use assel.

The Company has elecled to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical
expedients. Instcad of recognising a right-of-use assel and leasc liability, the payments in relation o thesc are
recognised as an expense in Stalement of Profit and 1.oss on a straight-line basis over the leasc term.

F. Financial instruments
(i} Recognition and initial measurement

A financial instrument is any coniract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enlity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attribulable to its acquisition or
13511E.

Trade receivables and debt securities are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a parly to the contractual provisions of the
inslrument.

(ii) Classification and subsequeni measurement
Financial assets
On Initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:

¢ Amortised cost

o  FVOCI debl invesiment;

=  FVOCI - cquity investment; or
I'VTPL

Financial asscts are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model [or managing financial assets.

A linancial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met and is not designated
asat FVTPL:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets [or collecting contractual
cash flows, and

e the contractual terms of the financial assel give risc on specified dates to cash flows thal are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

On initial recognition of an equily invesiment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI — equity investment). This
election is made on an investment- by- investmeni basis.

All financial asscts not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL.. This includes all derivative [inancial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate
a financial assel thal otherwise meets the requirements (o be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCT as at FVTPL
il doing so climinates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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Financial assefs: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a
portfolio level becausc this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is provided to
management, The information considered includes:

a) the stated policics and objectives for the porifolio and the operation of those policies in practice. Thesc inclhude
whether management’s strategy focuscs on carning contractual inlerest income, maintaining a particular interest
rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash
outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

b} how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

c) the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the [inancial assets held within that business
madel) and how those risks are managed,

d) how managers of the business are compensated  e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash [lows eollected; and

¢) the frequency, volume and liming of sales of financial asscts in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations aboul [ulurc sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets (o third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognilion arc not considered
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company s continuing recognition ol the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis
are measured at FVTPL.

Finavicial assets: Assessment whether eontractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest:
V! P L

For the purposes of this assessmenl, ‘principal’ is defined as the [air valuc of the financial asset on initial recognition.
‘Interest” is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credil risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk
and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers
ihe contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual
term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In
making this assessment, the Company considers:

a} contingent events that would change (he amount or timing of cash [ows;

b) terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate [eatures;

¢} prepayment and extension feature; and

d) terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non- recourse [caturcs)

Financial assels: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income,
are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Finanecial assets af amoriised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the cffective interest method. The amortised cost is

reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in

stalement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecugn,_'rtii:i.ﬂ:tx_{umgniﬂcd in statement of profit and loss.
O,
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Deht investinents af FVOCT

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in statement of profit and loss, Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCL On derccognition, gains and losses accumulated in OOCT are reclassified to statement of profit
and loss,

Equity investments af FFOCT

‘These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Dividends are recognised as income in statement of profit and
loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to stalement of profil and loss.

Financial labilities: Classificaiion, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liahilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

A tinancial liability is classitied as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or il is a derivative or il is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured al [air value and nct gains and
losses, including any intercst cxpense, are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are
subscquently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in statement of profil and loss. Any gain or loss on derccognition is also recognised
in statement of profit and loss. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of
the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.

(iii) Derecogniiion
Financial asvef

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the conlractual rights (o the cash Mows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights (o receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the company neither translers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does nol retain control of the financial asset,

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheel bul retains cither
all or substantially all of the risks and rewards ol the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assel, the [inancial assel is derccognised if the Company has not retained control of the
financial assct. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised (o
the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Financial lability

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.
The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash Hows under the
modified lerms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the
new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in statement of profit and loss,
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{iv) Offsctting

Financial asscts and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only
when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them
on a nel basis or (0 realise the assct and settle the liability simultaneously.

(. Impairment
(i} Tmpairment of financial asscts

The Company recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which
are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant [inancing
component is measured al an amount cqual to litetime ECL. For all financial assets with contractual cash flows other
than trade receivable, TClLs are measured at an amount equal (o the 12-month ECT., unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECL.
(or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date is recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Measurement ol expecied credit loss

Trade receivables

In respect of (rade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires
measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime cxpected eredit losses. Lifetime expected credil losses
are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expecled life of a financial
msirument,

Cther financial assets

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses il the credil risk on those financial assets has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the eredit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credil losscs, clse at an amount
cqual to the lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a defuaull oceurring over the expected life
of the financial asset. To make that assessment, the Comparny compares the risk of'a default occurring on the linancial
asset as at the balance sheel date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial assel as al the date of initial
recognilion and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that
is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition, The Company assumes that the credil risk
on a financial asset has nol increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial assel is determined to have
low credil risk at the balance sheet date.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

I.0ss allowances for financial assels measurcd at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the
assels

(ii) Impairment of non — financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assetls, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed al cach reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment tesling, asscts that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generaling units (CGUs). Fach CGU represents the smallest group of asscts that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash infllows ol other assets or CGls.

/1__.:_:_ o _-'-:_.' o,
The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual assct) isthe higherafits value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discotinled to their present value using a pre-tax

e |
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discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU
{or the assct).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an assel or CGU exceeds ils cstimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. An impairment loss is reversed il there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only
to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
net of depreciation or amorlisation, il no impairment loss had been recognised.

H. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assels

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of cconomic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimale
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheel dale) at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised as finance cost. xpected future operating losses are not provided for.

Contingent liabilitics

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose exisience will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present
ubligation thal is not recognised becausc it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required (o sellle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extrenm[y rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised
because it cannol be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses ils
existence in the financial statements,

Contingent asscts

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits
is probable,

I. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers/patients in an amount
that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. Revenue
is measured at transaction price net of rebates, discounts and taxes. A receivable is recognised by the Company when
the control is transferred as this is the case of point in time recognilion where consideration is unconditional because
only the passage ol lime is required. When cither party to a contract has performed, an entity shall present the contract
in the balance sheet as a contract asset or a contract liability, depending on the relationship between the entity’s
performance and the payment. The Company applies the revenue recognition criteria to each component of the
revenue lransaclion as scl out below,

i) Revenue from rental services
Revenue from rental services primarily comprises of revenue from leasing of immovable property

Revenue [rom providing services is recognised in the accounting period in which services are rendered. Where
the contracts include multiple performance obligations, the transaclion price will be allocated to each
performance obligation based on the standalone sclling prices. The period over which revenue is recognised is
based on entity’s right to payment for performance completed. In determining whether an enlily has right to
payment, the entity shall consider whether it would have an enlorecable right to demand or retain payment for
performance completed (o date if the contract were to be terminated before completion for reasons other than
cntity’s failure to perform as per the terms of the contract.

Revenue from providing scrvices is recognised in the accounting: pﬁ:lml:l; 1 which services are rendered, Where
the contracts include multiple performance obligalions, qu:, Aransactiv price will be allocated to each
performance obligation based on the standalone selling pr |c.».=.,'6.; \,;_--:_,
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ii) Income from healtheare services

Revenue from healthcare services is recognized as and when related services are rendered and include services [or
patients undergoing treatment and pending for discharge, which is shown as unbilled revenue under other current
financial assets. The Company considers the (erms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine
the transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to he
enlitled in cxchange for the services, excluding amounts colleeted on behalf of third parties (for cxample, indirect
laxes).

iii) Income from sale of pharmacy products to out-palients
Revenue from pharmacy products is recognized as and when the control of products is transferred 1o the customer.
The Company considers its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The transaction price is

the amount of consideration 1o which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for the products, excluding
amounts collecled on behalf of third parties (for example, indirect taxes).

Contract assets and liabilities

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on conlracts. Contract assets are
classitied as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash,
and only passage of time is required, as per contractual lerms.

Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability™) is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues.
Other income

Interesi income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method, The effective interest rate is the rate that cxactly
discounts cstimated future cash receipts through the expected lite of the financial asset to (he gross carrying amount
of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company cstimates the expected cash flows by

considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
oplions) but does not consider the expectled credit losses.

J.  Employee benefiis

The Company’s obligation owards various employee benefits has been recognised as follows:

(i) Short term employee benefils

Shorl-term cmployee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related
service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid ¢.g., wages and salaries, short-term
cash bonus, ele., il the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimaled reliably.

(ii) Long term employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-ecmployment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions inlo a
separale enlity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.

Provident fund and unplnync s state insurance scheme are. {lgrimcd contribution plans. These contributions are
recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profil ; 1}{(&;} mw@mg the period in which the employee renders the
related services. Y-
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Defined henefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benelit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
The Company has delined bencfit plan namely, Gratuity.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have carned in the current period, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any
plan assels, il any,

The calculation of defined benefil obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method.

The Company determines the net interest expense/(income) on the net defined benefit liability for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benelil obligation at the beginning of the annual period lo the
net defined henefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as
a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit
plans are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

The discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on
the market yiclds on government securities as at the balance sheet date.

When the benefits of 4 plan arc changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates o
past service ("past service cost' or "past service gain') or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in
statcment of profit and loss. 'I'he Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan
when the seltlement oceurs,

(iii) Other long term employee benefils — compensated absences

The Company’s net abligation in respect of long-lerm employee benefits other than post-employment benefits is the
amount of future benefit thal employces have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The obligation
is measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.
Remeasurements gains or losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise.

K. Tncome tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Il is recognised in statement of profit and loss except lo the extent
that it relates to an item recognised directly in cquity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income
Laxes.

Current lax assels and current tax liabilities are offsel only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

ii. Deferred (ax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitics
for [inancial reporting purposes and the comresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Delerred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profitswill be available against which they can be used.

it e

Deferred tax is measured at the lax rales that arc cxpu:cl;ﬁg:l;’io apply to‘the period when the assct is realised or the
liability is seltled, bascd on the laws that have been enau!gﬁd or substantivgly enacted by the reporting dale.
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The measuremenl of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manncr in which the
Company cxpeets, at the reporting dale, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are offsel il there is a legally enlorceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income laxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on difTercnt tax
entities, but they intend (o settle current tax liabilitics and assets on a nel basis or their tax assels and liahilities will
be realised simultancously.

I.. Recognition of interest expense

Interest cxpense is recognised using the effective interest method. The “effective inlerest rate’ is the rate that cxactly
discounts estimated [uture cash payment or receipts through the expecled life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the [inancial asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest expense, the elfective interest rate is applicd to the gross carrying amount of the assel (when
the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.

M. Segmeni reporting

Operating segmenls arc reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided Lo the chief operaling
decision maker, The Company’s Managing Director assesses the [inancial performance and position of the Company,
and makes strategic decision and has been identified as the chief operating decision maker. The Company is engaged
in the business of providing rental services, which has been defined as one business segment. Accordingly, the
Company's activities/business is reviewed regularly by the Company's Managing Director from an overall business
perspective, rather than reviewing its services as individual standalone components.

N. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attribulable to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per equity share, the net profit or loss [or the period attribulable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
cffects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

0. New and amended standard adopted by the Company
The Ministry of Corporate Allairs vide notification daled 31 March 2023 notified the Com panies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, which amended certain accounting standards (see below), and are effective 1
April 2023:

* Disclosure of accounting policies - amendments to Ind AS 1
. Definition of accounting estimates - amendments (o Ind AS 8
. Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single ransaction - amendments (o Ind AS 12

‘I'he oiher amendments to Ind AS notitied by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications.

These amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expeeted
to significantly affect the current or future periods. Specifically, no changes would be necessary as a consequence of
amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the Company's accounting policy already complies with the now mandatory
treatment.
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Mates to the Financial SBtatemen s foe e year ended 31 harch 2024
(AN pmamniz ave in TN million, unless otherwise staleal)

5, Wightenlpse assets and lease liabilifies
Infarmation aboat leases for whicls the Company s @ lesses i prescited belaw:

Tarticulars

Leaschalil Lamel Building

Right - of = use assels

- [Tartal)
Balance ns ut 01 April 2022 G461 2 G411, 1
Additicns during the yemn - 440,97 00097
Depreciation charge for the year (6.54) - (34}
Balance as at 31 March 2023 f34.07 0,97 1,625.04
hadifications during the year - [44.26) (44.26)
Depreciation clarge Foc the year (6.34) EENEN] (34 08)
Halince as al 31 havch 2024 627,53 0i8.07 1,5d6.50

The following 15 the musvemenl in lease liabilities during the year embed 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024,

Particulars

Lense liabilities

Halanece as at 00 Apyil 2022

Additions doring, he year WIE a2
Tinterest expenses capitahissd during the year (20.44)
Balance as at 31 Mareh 2013 Y1314
Tntereat expenses* pLERE]
Paymenl of lease labality (71.43)
Halance as al 31 Marel 2024 - 03421
Current - )
Asg at 31 March 2024 046
Asal 31 March 20023 £7.13
Man = curcenl L —
Al 31 baweh 2024 Rad, 15

B45.45

As at 31 March 2021

The Company iz not sxpased to foture cashilows selating to extension ! terminafion oqiions, residual value guarantees.

* Includes amount of 1K 774 willioes (31 Bareh 2023; INE 20,44 million) cagilalized in capital work-in-peogiress

A, The following arc ameants recognised in Statement of Trofit and Loss:

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Fa dlie year ended
A1 March 2013

Dicpreciation cxpenze of fght-ul-use assets (refer nate 28)
Inleras) expens on lease lizbilities (refer nole 27)

Bent expense relaling Lo shact-tenm leases and low value wesels
Total

B, The tolal amonnt of cashflow on account of beses fos (he year lag been disclosed in the cash o stalement.

428 6.54

85.22 .

11.40 223
130190 879

% Tl table helow deseribes the nature of Compasy's leaging sctivitizs by type of righl-of-use azsol recognized on the babince sheel

Ag at 31 hlarch 2024

Hight ol nse assels Ma, of vight-of-use  Wange of vemaining

Average remaining M. af leases with

Wi, of Tesises with

assels leased ferme {in yenrs) lease tevm (in yenrs) exlension aptions  termination splions
Leaschold Land 1 92 92 - -
Huilding
Hospital : i pu 29 | 1

Asat 31 AMacch 2023

Mo, of righl-llf-lJ.sn Tange of vemaining

Itiglil of wae assets .
assehs leasedl terin (in years)

Averupge remaining Mo, of Ieases with
leasc term (in years) exlension options

Ma. of leases with
terminnfinn aplinns

Leasehold Land 1 LE ]
Itmililing,
Hepspiilal 1 30

LA -

o 1

The Company determines the leases term as eisher the non-cancellable period of the lease and eny sdditional periods when there is an enforseable oplinn le exteid the lease and il s
seasoiably certain that the Compsany will extend the term, or 2 lense peciod inowhicl it is reasonsbly certain tal the Compaay will pot exercize a rght fo terminele. The lease torm is

renssessed if tere s 2 significant chimge in chicumstanecs.

(i g Jeees hewn itenioonadly feff blank)




Mus hledicars Hospitals I'rivate Limited
CIN == URSTI0HT201 IPTCILSTRT

Mites to the Financinl Stalements fov the year onded 31 3arch 2014
[AN smueunts are in INR million, unles alherwise stated)

1. The table below provides details iegarding the contracioe] mahuitics of lease liabilities as o 31 March 2024 and s at 31 hdarels 2023 on &n undiscounied basis:

Purliculars

Less than one year

After ome vear lat not longer than five yems

hore than five years
Total

E. Summary of signilicant leases:
Pavas Tromboo Hospital, Srinpgar

The Compary baed entered into a leass desd on 2 December 2022 with a thivd oty al Seinagar Jocation, ur

Agat As at

A1 Marcch 2024 31 Marvely 2023
2220 1133

M50 13964

2 B57.5% 204756
328735 _ 3,350.18

ler the terms of which lessoes had constructed a 200-bed lospilal building for

{he Company which hid been then be leased to the Company. Duration of this smngenent is 30 years, the monthly rent is a ficed monthly rental. Lessar would provide the budlding and

nen medical equipments i e property and the Compeny would inst2ll necessary medical equipment, for functiming of the Tespital.

. Capital work-in-progres

Particulars Asht Asal
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
alsmice az at the beginning of the yen 585 -
Additions during the yem 222 05,835
|Less: amonnt capitalised doring the g {67.45)
Balance as at the end of the year 0.62 65.85
Mates
{1} Capital wark-in-progress ageiny schedule as at 31 March 2024 amd 31 March 2023 - .
Ecumm Amount in capitnl work-in-progress for n period of Totul
T Less than 1 year L to 2 yenrs 2 to 3 years hiore than 3 yenrs )
31 farch 2024 0,62 - - 0,62
31 March M5 G585 - = 65,85
7} Capital work-m-progres includes property, plant anel equipnient ander construction, insdallation and cost of nssel nel ready for use as b year and
() There ure no susch projects in pragress, whoss comgpletian is averdue or his exeeeded its cost comparedd lo ils aviginal plan s of 31 March 2024 20d 31 March 2023,
) The costs thal are divectly aftribusnibe to the acquisition ar constaction of prapesty, plant and equipmen las been capitalised during fhe year, efer nate 42.
7. Intungible assets e
it As at As at

Particnlars

31 March 2024

A1 Marvch 2023

Snftwares
A, Gross cnrrying simaung
Balawce at the beginming of dlue year
Aclelilions during the year
Balanee a3 at end of the yenr

1, Accumulated amortization
Dalance ot the beginning of the year
Additions during the yesu
Balance as ni end of e year

Met carrying valoe

(Fiiix space has been Jmteriionaily Tef blank)

.76

.76

0.57

057




Plus Bedicare Hospituls Frivate Timited

CIM - USSLIOHH2001P TCT 15787

Mates to the Finaneinl Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(AL amounnts are in INE millian, unless otherwise statesl)

8 Uther finuneinl assels

Particulars

Nan Current

Current

As ni
31 Mureh 2024

Asat
31 March 2023

Ax ol
31 Marveh 2024

As at
31 Murch 2023

Unseenred, considered gond

Securily deposits 6581 767 - -
Uther receivabbes - - 13 0.15
Comract assets. unhilled revenue {retzr nose 4 - - 5012 -
Total 6381 T.67 327 0I5
%, Man current (ax asscts
Tarticulars Asat i o
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Tnenme-ta receivables {nel) 5.84 .56
Trtal 584 556
10, (ther asscis
Mon Currvent Current
articulars Asat As at Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 024 31 Maveh 2023
Capital advances 335 131,61 - -
Prepaid expenses - - .16 1.95
Advances to empluyess - - .05 -
Advances to suppliers v - - 118 S
Total 3.33 131.61 349 1.95
[1. Inventorics
Asat Anat

Farlicnlars

31 Muarch 2024

31 March 2023

Walued at bwer of cost or net realisable value
hfedical drugs
Bores and consumabies

Tatal

1. Trade receivables

3129
5.38
36,67

Farticulars

As il
31 Baoech 200k

Asat
31 March 2023

Tndisputed trade receivables

Considered good, unsecired 234 =
Credit impatre:d .66 401
9,00 G601

Less: Allowance for expected crodit loss (pefer note 38)

Considerad pood, unsecured - =

Credit impaired (& 56] ) (6.01)
MNet teade receivabiles 2.34 2
Trade receivibles ageing scliedule as at 31 March 2024

Chutatanding for following perinls fram date of invoice
TParticalars Lass than & G manths to 1 Mire than Total
1t 2 yenrs 1tn 3 years

_ months FUHTS FLHIS -
Thndisputed trade reccivalles

Considersd oo, unsecured 234 n - - - 234

Creit impiires 0.32 0,33 - 240 161 6,66
Total trade reccivables 166 0,33 . 240 361 .00
Less: Albawanes: for cxpected credit Juss {refer nole 38)

Considered good, wiscouned - - - - - -

Credit impaired {0,327} {0.33) 5 {2401 (1613 i6.66]
Net trade receivithles .34 - - - - 134




Flus Meslivere Tlaspitals Private Limited

UM e URSTIOMRIONITTCLISTET

Mutes (o the Financial Statements for the year embed 31 Marel 2024
(AN smaunts are in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

13,

Trade receivables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023

Culstanding for follawing perivis from sdate nfin'vqic:

Particulars Less than & & months ta 1 ) Mare than & Total
1t 2 years 1t 3 years
muomnLhs Years YIS

Undisputed {rulde receivaliles

Considered gond, unsccured - - - t - =

l.'-:ll.‘»cjii impaired - - Ll 361 - 601
Totanl trade receivables & 5 2,410 XAl T Gl
Tizss: Allowance for expecled crecdil boss {refer note 38)

Considered good, unszowred 7 5 - -

Credit impaired - = [2.40) (Aal) - (601

Med drade receivahles =

Naties:

I. Thers are na debis dus by ditectoss or ether officers of the Company o any of them either severully or jointly wilh any other person ar debis due by fims ar private coMmpaniss

respectively in which any dircetor is a pariner or a direcion or @ member.
2, These are nn disputed or unbilled trde receivables, henes the same s not discloszd in the ageing schedule.

Cash and cash cqoivalents
I " As at Asgat
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 Nlareh 2023
Fakinees will hanks
= O elreht aecnunts 871 .04
Cash on hand 068 £F
Tulal pUm L] T
Bank balances other than cush and cash equivalents 5
A Asal Ay at
Faraouian 31 March 2024 31 Murch 2023
Drcpasits with onginal maturily more iz thre: mooths but remeaining matuily of less than twelve months* hoxz -
0,22 -

Tuatal

* eludes earmarked balanees of TME 0.22 nullion {31 March 2023 © Mil}

>

(Thiz space has been srentinsily byt Wank)




Plus Medicare Lospitals Private Timited

T - TIHSTIOHB201 1T CLLISTRY

Muotes to the Finapncial Statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2024
(All amounts are in INK millions, unless atherwise stated)

5. Equity share cupitul

Particulars

Aol As at
31 March 2024 31 Adarch 2023

“Authurised share capital

40,000,000 {31 March 2023; 40,000,000) cquity shares of [NIL 10 each

Total

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equily shares

40,000,000 {31 March 2023; 40,000,000} equily shares of TNR 10/- cach, fully paid
Totul

#1) Reconciliation of authorised share capital outstanding at the beginning and al (he end of the reporting year:

400,00 40000
400,04 400,00
00,00 40000
400,00 40000

Asat 31 March 2024

As at 31 Mareh 2023

Parliculars

MNumber of shares Amount  Number of shares Asngund
Equily shares of TNTL 10 each
Al the beginning and end of the year 4 001,00 000 400,00 4,00, 00,000 400,00
by Reconciliation of equily capital nutstanding at the bepinning and at the end of the reporting years
r As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 1023
avtleulars :
MNumber of shares Amouni  Numher of shares Anniiint
Equity shares of INIL 10/~ each fully paid
AL he Beginning and end of the year 4,00,00,000 406200 41,00,00,0040 A00.00

&) The rights, preferences and vestrictions to each olass of shaves including restrictions on (he disteibutlon of dividends and vepayment of capital.

The Company has only one cluss of equily shares having par valee of INE 104 per share, Rach holder of equily shires 15 enlitled to one vote per share wilh 2 right to reesive
per share dividend declarcd by the Company. In the event of liquidation of the Company, e halders of equity shares ars entitled 1o receive romaining assels of the Company

{afler dishibution of all preferential amounts) in proportion fa the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders

d) Detail of shares held by cach shaveholder holding move than 5% shures in the Company:

As i 31 Marel 2024

Asat 31 March 2023

Particul
nrticulirs MWumher of shares

% Holding  Number ol shares

% Holding

Equily shares of TNTU 1= cach fully paid beld by
Pias Healtheare Private Limited (including the nominee sharchalders)

€} Dhetails of shares held by promoters of the Company:

4,000,000, 000 100,00%

4,00,00,000 100.00%

Asat 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

% change in

Particulars . - sharcholding during
Mumber of shares % of holding Mumber of shares Yo of holding the year

Fopuity shares of INK 10~ euch fully gaid leld by

Paras [ealileare Private Limited {including the 4,000, 40,000 1040, (0%, 4,00,00,000 100 00%

nominee sharelolders)

As at 31 March 2023

As ail 31 March 2022

o uhanH

Particulars sharchoalding during
Mumber of shares o ol holding, Wumher of shaves % of halding the year
Equity shures with voling rights
Paras Healthcare Privale Limilad (including the 4,060, 00 L1 100.00% - 100,00
nominec sharcholders)
Satendrapal Singh Chhaboa - - 2,68,00.000 &7.00% -67.00%
Mahendiapal Singh Chhabra o - - 38,00 000 0.50% -9.50%
400,00, (HH 100,05 300G, 00,0040 T6.50% 23.50%

Mntes:-

u} The above information is fornished as per shareholier register of the Compary as al the year ended 31 Mareh 2024 und 11 March 2023

b "Promaters” for the purpose of this discinsure means promoters as defined under Seetion 2(69) of Companies Act, 2003

fI Agpregate number of shurees issued for consideration other than cosh durving the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting dale
The Company has not izsued any shares pursuant to & contract without payment being veceived in cash, alloted as fully paid up by way of bonus shures nor hias thers heen any

buy-back of shares in the current year sl immediately preceeding five years.

(Thiz space has been infenfionally left Mauk)
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Motes to the Financial Statemends for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounis are in TNT millions, unless otherwise stated)

Lé, Other equity

Particulars

Asat
31 Mavch 2024

As at
31 Muarch 2023

Retained carnings (note ﬂtluw}
Balunce as al (ha heginning of the year
Add: {loss) prodit during e year
Add: wiher comprzhensive income for the year
Re-measuremient Ings on defined bensfil plans (nat of tax)
Bulance as ol (he end of the year

Mature and purpose of rescrves
Retained carnings

143.33 105.26
(546.18) AR
(005} -
(402,90 143.33

Retained carnings wre e profits | (losses) that the Company has made tll date, less any Iransfers to general reserve, dividends or ather dislibulions paid to sharcholders. Tt
ineludes re-measurement loss / (pair) on defined benefil plans, nel of taxes that will nol be reclassificd to Statement of Profit and 1oss. Retainsd earmings is a free reserve

avirilable to the Company wnd eliniblz for disribution to sharcholdes,

(i space e heen intentionmify left blowk)
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Mites to the Financial Statements Tor the vear ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounds nre in INK million, unless otherwise siated)

17

a)
k)

Non-current borrowings

Parliculars

Asal
31 March 2024

Aol
31 Mlarch 2023

Secured, at amartised cost

Termm lopns o hanks

Unzecnresl

Lean from Holding Campimy

Less: canrend naturities of non-currant Bormowngss
Tutul

i) Termns of vepayment and sceurity dedails:

66951 385.75
672.83 183,04
{21.87) (15329
1,320,723 65347

Malure of Security

a) Term Tadan from Bank A:

i) IME. 369 81 million {11 March 2023 : INR 38575 nullon) e secured primarily by:

Trari Trassu charge by way of Lguitabde martgage of the Company's propesty al

) Plol Mo 1, land in Khasra Mo 847, 875, 876, & 877 Mi, Rev. Vill Shothgpura, vear Shohihgpure circle,
Tehsil Girwa, Dastrict Udaipor, {Rajasthan) 313001

157 Pl Mo 2-A land in Khosra Mo, 874, e Village Shobhagpura, District Udaipor, (Rajasthan) 313001

Terms ol Hepayimnent

Repayment in 104 installments aggregating to IMR 369 51 million
Hat of inferest cange drom 9.0% pa 10 9.90% pa. (31 March

E02E - B60% pa)

13 TR S00.00 million {31 March 2027 : Mil) are sceured primarily by
1) Exclusive chirpe on mevahle freed assets including movatde plant and machinery, machinesy spaics, toals
and accessories, famitire, fxtures, vehicles and all ather movable pssels, present and futre.

b} Exelugive charge on curment assets, operaling sash flows, receivables, commissions, revemses of whatsoever
natures and whersver arising, present and futare.

) Corparate Guarantee of Paras Healtheare Mrivate Limited.

d) Mon Dispusable Undertaking on shareholding of the Company.

) Exclusive churge gver propesty siteated at Udaipur.

Repaymen in 74 installments apgrepaiing tn THR 30000 million
Rate of mterest sange fom 8.51% poa to 8.85% pa

{31 March 2022 - Mil)

1) Lonn fron Holding Company:

TRate of Interest Agat Asoat
Hame o Amdpany [EE AL ikl 31 March 2024 31 Mavch 2023
Paras Heallthcare Privale Limited YR Teepayable in five equad anmel istaliments after initiol moratonen G728 28304
penisd of 2ix years starting from 220
Motes:
Douring the yesar, the Company has used the bunowings from hanks for the specific pupose for whicl it was taken al e balance sleet date,
“Vatal undrawn term loan facility as al 31 March 2024 amounts to INE. 500 million (31 March 2023 : IME 30500 millicn)
Current borrowings B
Farliculars Azl ik
(e 31 March 2024 31 Ddlaveh 2023
Securved, at amortised cost
Working capital loan 28,50 -
Current matwrities of non-current bomowings 21,52 1531
Taolal 542 15.32

Terms of repayment and scourity details:

Nature of Scrnrity

Terms of RBepayment

a) Cverdraft from Bank Az

i) [BIR, 28, 500 million (31 harch 2023 : Wil are secwred pimarnly by

&) Exclusive charge on wovable Axed assets including movable plant and machinery, machinery spines, teels
amel aecessavics, furnitore, fixtures, vebicles and all ather movable nssets, present and fature.

b) Exclusive clage an ewrrent assets, operuting cash Nows, reccivables, commissions, revennes af whatsoever
nature and whersves wising, present and fanre.

¢ Corporate Guarantes of Paras Dlealllare Private Limited

) Mon Digposable Undertaking on sharehalding of the Company.

Rate of mnlerest range from 8.51% pow to .58 % pa

(31 barch 2027 : Nil)

Maote: Total undien averdraft faeility as at 31 Mwch 2004 amounts to IR 2150 million (11 Pbarch 2023 TREL 30,00 mullion),

{hiv spoce hax ey puenfonaily teft Sk
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Plus Medicare Nuapitals Private Limited
CIN == UASTIOHRI0LIMTCLISTHY

Mastes to the Finaneial Stantements for the year ended 31 Marel 2024

{All amonnts see in INE million, unless ofherwise stated)

18, uher financial liabilitics

Mon Currenl Current
Parficulirs As at Agat As al As ol
31 Murch 2024 30 March 2023 31 Narch 2424 A1 ivlareh 2023
Security deposits 121,00 11548 .5 -
Payahle for purchise of property, plant and eygeipment - - 2L1E -
Interest acered bl nat dus on borrswings - - 437 -
Fowployeca payable - - 203 070
Talal 121.02 L1448 I7.33 0.70
19, Oiher liabililies
' Mon Current Current
Particulnrs As at As at Asg al Al
31 Murch 2024 31 March 2023 31 hlarch 2024 31 March 2023
Stamtory ducs payable - - 12.75 11.69
Cantract lighilities = advance from patisnts {refer nole 207 - = 852 405
Dielirved ineone: v 12281 13041 R.50 850
Tutal 132,91 13141 20.77 2424
0, Provisions
Mo current Currenl
FParticulars As at As at As at Asat
; A1 Moreh 20624 30 Murch 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
FProyision for employee benefits
Provision o graduity (refer nate 374 0.4% 0.02 (.03 (.00
Provizion for compensated abesiees {refer nose 37) 171 0.1% 1.03 0.12
Tatal 2.21 021 LG 012
* Amount below rowsding ol taons
AL, Trade payables A
Particulars ek et
: : 31 March 2034 31 March 2023
Total outstanding dies of micro enterprsss wd small cnterprises (MM, mnd A4l -
Tutal oulstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enterpnszs an siall cnterprises 3.2 0.8
Tolnl G1.75 0.94
Motes:
#) The Company's cxpasurs W cunensy and liquidity risks relaled to trade payables is disclosed in pote 38,
1) For trade payables owing to micro and small enterprises, refer note 33
Trade payahle ageing schedule as af 31 March 2024 o
. Outstanding for following periods from the dute of inviice
Eaiculacs Unbilled ]'”: ;'i:’: 1 to 2 years Zto3 years More than 3 years Tab]
TUndisputed trmde payaliles
MSME 0.32 A00 - - - 241
Othcra 26,14 28.20 = - 54.54
Total trade payalles 26,40 36,29 ol - = 62,75
Trade payable apeing schedule os nt 31 Mareh 2023 )
& Chutstanding for following periods from the dufe of inwnlee
Pavticulars Unbilled I'EH? ;]_::']1. 1l 2 years 2 o3 yenrs  More than 3 years sl
Tndisputed trade payables -
MEME - - - - -
{ithers 077 07 - - - 94
Tatal frade payables 0,77 17 = - - 094

“Ilsere are no disputed and not duc trade payables, hence the same is not disclosad in (he ageing schedule,

(This space fas e iafentioually Jefl Bank)



Plus Medicare Hospitals Privaie Limited

CIN = UBSILOHRZOVTPTCISTRT

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts are in INIL million, imless ntherwise stated)

2,

13.

23.

26

Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the vear ended
31 March 2024

Tror the year ended
31 March 2023

Revenue fiom sale of services - Healtheare
Operating income - 0 paticat depariment
Operating income - out paticnt department

Fevenue from sele of product - Pharmuacy
Sub-total (A)

Revenue [rom rental scrvices
Sub-tatal (H)

Oiber aperating revenuc
Sponsorship income
Serap sules

Sub-rotal ()

Total (ATB+C)

Mare; Hefer nole 40 for revenoe related disclosures.

Other income

60.45

60.45

(.05
0.15

0.20

413,74

"articnlars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the vear ended
31 March 2023

Unwinding of discount on security deposils
miscellaneous income
Total

Purchases of stock-in-lrade

12.41 029
: 3.65
12.41 12.94

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Tor the vear ended
31 March 2023

IMarchases of stock-in-lrade
Taotal

Changes in inventovies of stock-in-trade

10761

10741

For the vear en:l;:d

For the year ended

PG 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Inventorics at the end of the year 3129 -
Sub-total (A) 3129 -
Tnventorics at the beginning of the year - =i
Sub-total (B) - &
Met chanpe (B-A) (31.29) -
TEmployee benefits expense -
Parti i For the vear ended For the year ended
articulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salaries and wages 130.42 (.33
Contribution to provident fund and other funds (refer note 37) 772 -
Slallwelfare expenses 10,73 -
Total 148,87 0.33

(This space har heen intentionally left blank)
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CIN :- DRSLIOIIRZ0LIPTCTISTET

Males Lo the Financipl Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(ALl amounts are in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

7.

18,

8.

Finance costs

Particulars

Tor the year ended
31 Mareh 2034

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Intercst cxponse

- On borrowwings [roan banks

= O lease Liabilitics
= (thers®

Unwinding of discount on seenrity deposils

Other borrowing costs
Tatal

# |Ipcludes interest on loan taken from related perly (refer notc 34)

Depreciation and amorlization expense

6148 3.0
£5.22 2
44.05 516
12,44 11,23
437 -
2017.56 5440

Partienlars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the ]."em' ended
31 March 2013

Depreciation of propeety, plant and equipment (refer note 1)
Amartization of intangible assels (reler note 7)
Digpreciation of right-nfuse assels (refer note 5)

Tadal

Other expenses

13948 6303
057 -

3428 .54

174.33 69,57

Particulars

Fowr the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Power, luel and watcr
Fent and facility tocs

Repairs and maintenance

- Buildings

- Plant and equipments

= {thers

Howse keeping expenscs

Laundry cxpenses

Patient T and beverage
Payments to anditor {including applicable taxes) {refer nole below)

Loss allowance

Ontzourced medical services

Security cxpeonscs

Legal and professional fees
Travelling and conveyance

Printing and slalionery

Cormuesication cxpensaes

Lsurance
Rales and taxes

Advertisoment, marketing and outreach cxpenses

Bank charges

Miscellaneous expenses

Tutal

MNote: Payments to auditor

As audito:

Auncit lees (including applicable taxes)

Others

Kemmbursement ol expenscs

15.24
2435

1.29
5T
791
27,04
L85
54
(]
0.63
4 B8
10,40
1.97
.80
|52
1.94
I.15
L7
20.64
1.47
4,570

225

0.17

1:48.51

.00
0.72
0.08

0,77

L840

077

Mate: The costs that are directly arributable o dhe acquisition or construction of property, plant and equipment has beea capitalised during the year, refor

misle 42
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Flus Medicare Hospitals Private Limited

CIN = USSITOHRZOTTIPTCI1STRY

Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(AN amounts are in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

0. Tax expense

a) Amount reeognised in statement of profit and loss

For the year cnded
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Current tax _
Dreferred tax credit (ned)
Tax expense Tor the year

s {98.31)
5 (98.31)

b) Ineome (ax recognised in other comprehensive ineeme

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Fe-mensurement of delingd benefit plans (net uf"-tax}

¢} Meconciliation of effective tax rate

For the year ended 31 March 2024 For the year ended 31 March 2023

Loss hefore tax (346.18) {E:LI'.2.4}
Tax using the Company's domestic rate 26.00% (142.01) 26.00% {15.60)
Tax effeet of:
- Cithers =20, 00%, 142,01 137.19% (£2.65)
Effective tax rate - - Z 163.19% {98.31)
d) Recognized deferred tax assets |/ {liabllitics)

Deferved tax assets and {liabilitics) atiributable to the following:

. As at Asal

Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Deferred (ax liabilities on
Property, plant and equipment
Fight-of-use asels

Sub-total {A)

Less: Deferred tax assels on

- Lease liabilities

- Losses and unabsorbed depreciations
- Loas allowances

- Provision for employes henefits

- {thers

Sub-total (B)

Met deferred (ax assel (A+D)
et delerred tax asset recopnised in the books

Mel delerred tax assct unrceognised in the honks

Mote:

(91.06) (67.16)
(402.00) {357.95)
{493.15) (425.11)
242,90 23743
27242 197.16
173 1.51
01,85 0.0%
12.80 -
530,70 436,18
37.55 1.7
37.55 11.07

As at 31 March 2024, no deferred tax assel has been recognised by the Company us it is not probable that the Company would have sipnificant fomee taxable

privfits fo ulilies (hese lemporary ditferences.

(This space s been intentionally fefl doaat)
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a)

bj

33.

Earnings per share (EPS)

Ligsic EPS amounts are caloutaed by dividing, the protit for the yewr attribuialile to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares oulstanding during the yeur.
iiluted EPS armounts ars ealeulated by dividing the profic aitvibutahle o equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shires oulstanding during the year plus the
weighted average number of equity shares that woubd be issued on Canversion of wll the dilutive potentinl cquity shares into equity shares.

The following reflects the ineome and sharve data used in the basic and diluled EPS computations:

Paviailiis * Far the year ended For ihe year ended

: 31 Muech 2024 31 March 2023
“Waighted average number of shares autstanding during Lhe ya 4,00,00,000 4,00,00,000
Mat {lass) profit atributable o the equity sharcholders (46, 18) 3807
Busic and diluled eamings per share [Face valwe of TNR 10 each] {13.05) 0535

Commitments and conlingencies

Commitments

Fatimated amount of coniracts remaining to be execuled which is of capital nature (nef of advances) and which have not been provided for in the financiul shalements,
amounts b IME 5,11 million (31 March 2023: 21633 million)

Contingent lHabilities noi provided far
The Company has issued corpurade guarairtee amounting o INE 1 856,15 (as sccondury collateral) to the bank on belall of the Holding Company for e renewal of Holding,
Company™s credit facilites.

Dedails of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 20046

Based on Lhe information available with (he Company, some of suppliers have been identified, whe e registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Faterprises
Trevelapment Acl, 2006 (MSMED) to whom the Company owes and the sume is outstanding tor more thin 4% days. The infonmation has been determined W Lhe extent such
parties huve been identified an the basis of responses received fram suppliers on confirmation sought by the Company.

Purlivulars G 28 ot
] 31 March 2024 31 Murch 2023

a) The principal amount payvalile to supplicrs at the year snd 541 -

b1 ‘The mneunt of interest dus en the remaining wipaid amound b suppliers as at the year end = 2

£) The amouni of interest paid by buyer in lerms of section 16 of MSMELY, along with the amount of the payiment - -

made to supplier beyond the appointed day during each sceounting yeur

d} The amount of inkerest due and payable tor the period of delay in making paymen] {which have been paid but - F

heyand the appointed day during the year) bul without adding the interest specified wnder the MEMED

¢ The amount of interest zecrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each acconting year ¥ =

fi The amount of Durther intesest remaining due and payabile in the succeeding years, until such dow when the - -

interest dues above are aciially paid o the small enterprise, for the pupose of disallowance of o deductible
cxpenditare under section 23 of MAMED.

(e space faw been inteaninnally tefi Slank) ! g
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34,

35,

Relzted parly disclosures
In mccordunie with Tnd AS-24 an related party disclosures where contrel exist and whers trunsuctions have laken plics and descriplion of he relationships as identified and
cerlifiznd by the management are as follows:

NMuture of relationship Name of related party

(i) Holding Compiuny Paras Healthcare Private Limited {w.e. £ 18 Oclober 20022)

(ii) Fellowr subsidiary Company Maras Healtheare (TRanchi) Private Limited {wee £ 18 October 2022)
(iiin  wher  enterprises over  which  key  management Fil laliza Lifestyle Limitad (160 06 October 2022)
persannelfdireetor exercise significant control. Sut Inchwstries Limited (0l 06 Ovlober 122

(1v) Koy Manugeoil Personne] Mr. Mahendrapal Singh Chhabra (Director) (upls 08 Cetolbar 2022)

W=, Amarjeet Kaar Chhabra (Director) {upto 06 Oclebsr 20223

Mr. Satendrapal Singh Chleabea {Director) (upto 23 December 2022)
Mr.Amandesp Singh Chhabra (Directon {upto 06 October 2022}

Tor. Shankar Marang (Director) { wee . 06 Oclober 2022 ypdo 14 Fehrary 2023)
W, Mikhil Sharma {Threctar) (et 06 October 2022

Do, Bamesr Vinayak Kulkami (Dircctor) (upto 20 January 2024)

Ui, Sunly Mesliyanickal Sajan (Director) {we £ 19 May 2023)

Mr. Manmoban Chhipa (CEC) (w.e [ 23 Decenbey 2027)

s, Ritika Kumawat {Company Secretuny) (uple 01 Auges] 2022

M, Ralul Kamar (Company Scerctary) {w.e £ 23 December 2022 updo 18 May 2023)
Mr. Bhiral Sachdey (Comgany Secretary) (we £ 19 May Z023)

Uramsnelions during the year ended:

A For the year ended For the year ended
Taiicalan 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Laan taken from related party
Satender T'al Singh Chlahra - 1850
Farus Lealibhoire Frivate Limited A 27800
345.74 - 196,50
Interest on Loun tnken
Paras Healtheare Private Limited 4405 503
THil Tralica Lifestyle Limited - .63
Sal Indesties Limited . LIg
Sutender Pal Singh Chhabaa z .84
Ad. NS B.66
Revenue from rentul services
Taras Healtheare Private Limited 63.75 30,23
= £3.75 30.23
Ohwisouresd medical services
Panis Fealtheae TPrivate Timited 261
Ll
Bepnyment of loan and interest
Set Indusines Limated - 53.44
Satender Pal Bingh Chhabra - 20,74
Tl Tialica Lifestyle Limited - 7.0
- 151460
Balance 08 af the year end:
""" , Asat Asul
Forticiiprs 31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
Borrowings
Loan from Holding Compuny
Paras [ealtheare Trivate Timited G72.R3 28104
67283 = 2R304
Seewrily deposil (undiscounted)
Peras Healthcare Private Limiled ) 25400 25400

15400 254,00

Terms and conditions of related party transactions:

(a1} The Llolding, Company Tas issued letier of support fior financial assistance to the Company Tor ongoing projects and operations for a perind of not less than 12 monthe from the
tale of Msancial closure of accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 burch 2024,

(1) The Holding Company has provided a corporate puaranies o bunk on behall ef the Company Tor sanction of Tozn for sctting ap the hospital at Snnugar.

(&) The Company has also issucd corporate puaranies (ws secondary collateral) to the bank on hehalt of the Holding Compuny for the renewal of Lolding Company™s credit
facilitics.

Maotes:

) Al transactions with related partics are made en the terms equivalend W hose hal prevail in anm’s lenath transactions and within the ordinary course of business. Outstanding,
halances at respective year ends are unsecured und selilement is peoeally dons in cash,

b} The above information Tas been determined to the cxtent such partics have been wdentified on the basis of infomation available with the Company and relied wpon by the
auditors

Segment infurmativn
The chicf aperating decision maker (CODM), examines the Company's performanee from a serviee perspective and has identified the Healthcare services' &5 a single husiness
seament. The Company is opersling in India which constitutes a single pengraphical scgment. The CODM reviews intemal manugemenl reporls o assess the parformance of the
seament Healthvare services’, Thers agea ¥ actions with a single external customer which would amount te ten percent or more of the Company's revenies
- i
Mﬁ
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36, Fair value measurement and financial instruments

a. TFionncial instruments — by eategory and fuir values hierarchy

The following explains the judgements and estimates made in delermining the fair values of the financial instroments. To provide an indicalion about the reliability of

the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments info the three levels prescribed under the secounting standard.

Level I quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.
Level 2: inputs ather than guoled prices included within Level 1 that are ohservable for the assel or lrubility, either directly or indincctly,

Level 3: unebservable inputs Tor the asset or liahilit.

Valuation techinigues nsed to determing fair value

The Tuir value of the financial wssets and liabilites are included at the amount that would be received o sell an asset and paid Lo ansfor 8 linhility in an orderly
transaclion between market paclicipants. The following mellods were nsed to estimale e fair values :

- “Trade receivables. cash and cash equivalents, ofher bank halances, ofhier current finuncial assets, trade payebles aud other current financial liabilities: Approximate
their carrving wmeunts largehy due b (e current matirities of these nstuments,
_ Borrowings taken by the Company ate as per the Company's credit and liguidity risk asscssment and there is no eomperable instrument having the similar terms amii
conditions with related security being pledged and henee (e carcying value of the borcowings represents the best estimate of air value.

As at 31 March 2024

. ] Carryiog value Fair value hicrarchy
Particulars -
FVTILY Amortized Cost I'ntal Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial asseis
MNon-current
Other financial asscts - 65,81 6581 “ - 65.81
Current
Trade reccivables - 2.4 2.3 - - -
Cash und cash equivalents - 9.39 9.39 & o t
Bank halances other than cash and cush equivalents . 022 .22 - - -
Other financial assels - 5.27 5.27 - - -
Total " 83.03 8303 . _ 5.81
Financinl Habilities
Mon-currenl
Bomowings - 1,320.72 132092 - - 1,320.72
Liease lizhilities - 8375 80:3.75 - - -
Other tinancial lwbilities - 121,02 121.02 - u 121.02
Current -
Darrowings - a4 5012 - -
Lease liabilities - 704G T0.46 - - -
Trade payables = 62.75 62.75 - - -
Other financiul liabilities - 31.35 3735 - - -
Tuotal - 2.526.47 2,526.47 - 1,441.74]
As at 3 March 2023

" Carrying valne Fair value hicrarchy N
i FVTPLI | Amortized Cast] ___ Total Level | Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
MNon-current
Oiher [inancial assets - 707 7567 - - Ta7
Current
Cash and cash equivalonts = T4 T.04 z 2 &
Other financiul assels - 0.15 0.15 - - -
Toial - 14,80 14,80/ - - T.67]
Financinl liabilities
Mon-enrrent
Dorrowings - 065347 653.47 - 653.47
1.euse linbilities - B45.45 54545 - - -
Oither financial liabilities - 11848 11448 - (RERE
Current
Borrowings - 15.32 15,32 . - -
|ease liabilities - 67.73 67.73 - - -
Trade payables - 094 .04 5 - -
Oiber [nancial linhilities - 0,70 0,70 - - -
Total - 1,702.09 1,70 2.0% - - TT1.95

‘There have been no transfers hetween Level 1, Level 2 und Level 3 for the years ended 31 March 2024 und 31 Mareh 2023,

# Fair value through profit or lnss

Yaluation technigue for level 3

&
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EXS

aj

1]

el

Employee benefils expenses

“The Company confrilutes o the following post-employinent defined hanefit plans:

Nefined eontributinn plans

“The Compuny has recopnised the follmving amaunt in the Stalement of profit and Inss:

Far the !."lt-:ll' cnided

Vo (he year ended

Parliculars 31 MMarch 2024 A1 Warch 2023

Empluyer's conitribation to Employes's Provident Fund 653 -

Employer's conlritalion fo Fmployes's State Insurunge 1.19 -
.71 -

(ther long-term employmend benefits

The Company provides compensaled absences henefits to the employees of the Company which can be carried forward W fufire year, _

T Asat Asgat

Purliculnrs 31 March 2024 31 March 2013

Present value of obligation as at the end of the year

Compensated absenves 276 031

Current and non-curvent ability bifureation

Mon currznt 1.73 019

Currant 1.03 1,12
LT6 1,31

Defined benelit pluns

The Company provides for gratuity for employess in Tndia as per the Payment of Graluity Act, 1972, Employees who are in conlinuous serviee far a period of 5 years arc
eligihle for pramity. The amount of gratuily payabile on retirementterminution is Oee employees last drawn basic sulary per month computed proportionately for fifleen days

salzry multiplizd for the number of years af serviee.

(i} Bevoneiliation of present value of defined benefil obligation

. Asgat As ot
i _ 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.02 -
Currcnt service cost 044 0.2
Interest cxpense .00 -
Actiarial lnsses recognised i other comprehensive incama 0.05 _
Balance af the end of the year n.51 [IKIF]
* amounl below rounding, off norms
{il) Met liability recopnised in the Balines sheet
Tarticulars Axat Axat

31 March 2024 31 Mlarch 2025

Muon curnent liahilities 045 L2
Cureend liabalilies 1,03 0.0
151 U2

* Amnunt helow rounding off norms

(i) Amaunt recopnized in Stutement of profit and lnss

For the vear cnded

For the year ended

As at 31 Morch 2024, the weighled aveage duration of the defined benelil obligation is 24 years (31 March 2023 19 vears)

B

Tarticular
i 31 Mareh 2024* 31 March 2013
Currenl service enst .44 nom
Interesl expanss .00 -
044 002
*Amnount below rounding off neanes
{iv) Hemensurements recogiized in ather comprehensive income (0CT)
Particalass For the year ended Far the year ended
i . 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Actuarial {gain}/ lass an defined benelil obligation 0.03 =
L3 -
(V) Actuarial assumplions

: Asat As at
Part :

s 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Dhizcount rate 7.15% T A0%
Salary escalation rate 5000 0085
Blortalily 1ale LALDM 201214 LALLM 2012-14
Raliremenl age 38 years 58 years
Withdrawal rats 5005 33.00%
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Thess wsumplions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appeaisers. Discount fectors ure delermined close w each year end by reference
o government bands of relevant ceonomic markess and thil have terms fo malurity approximating o the temms of the related obligaiion, Other assumptions are based un
maagement's historical experience,

[vi) Sensitivity analysis

The helow sensitivity analyses are based on a cliange in an assomption while holding all sther wsumptions constant. Tn practice, this is unlikely to ocour, and changes in seme
of the assumplions may be corelaled, When calenlating the sensitiviey of the delined benefil obligation to sighificant achzarial assumptions the same melhods (present value of
defined benefil oblipation ealeulsted with the projected unit credit method af the end of the reporting perind) has been applied as when caloulating e defived henetit liabili
recogniszd in e balance sheet.

The methods and types of essumplions wsed in preparing the sensilivily analysis did not change compered to the prior period.

- sl 31 March 2024 As ut 31 Mareh 2023
Particulars
- Increase Devrease Tucrease Decrease .
Diseaunt rate {1%) 0.50 052 0.0z a2
Salary escalation rate { 1%) 0.52 0.50 .02 002
Withdrawal rate (134) 048 0.54 002 o2

The sensitivity resulls above determing their individeal impact on the Plan's end of yeair Defined Renefit Obligation. In reality, the Plan 35 subgect lo maliple external expericnce
ilerms which rey move the Tefined Benefit Obligation in similas o upposile directions, while the Tan's scsitivity to such chunges can vary oves tine,

(i) Fxpected future cash flows
The table helow shows the cxpected cash flow profile of tse beaedits W be paid 1o the current membership of the plan based on past ssrvics of the employees as at the valuaton

Particulars Asal As at
5 31 March 20024*% 31 March 2023*
Year ] 0.3 0,00
ear 2 0.00 0.0
Wear 3 0.00 01,00
WVear 4 0,02 .00
Yeur 5 003 LRI
Yeur & onwirds . 043 0.0z
.51 .02

The Company exgects to contrilite. THR 1.04 million (31 March 2023 is MR 0.28 million) far post employment benetits during e next lnancial year,
*Amount below rounding ofl s

&

{Theik e har been ntentionaliy igit blank)
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38.

iA)

Financial risk management

The Company has exposure Lo e Tollowing risks avising from (nencial istruments:
= Credit risk

= Liguidity risk ;

= darket risk

Risk magagement framewark

The Company's board of dircetars has overall responsibility for the estublishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework.

The Compuny's risk management policies are established Lo identify and analyze he risks faced by the Company, o sel appropriate risks limits and conlrols, and
to monitor risks and adlerence to limits. Risk manugement policics are reviewsd resularly Lo tefleet changes in murkel conditions and the Company's activitics.
The Company, Wrougl its training and management standards and procedures, aims (o maintain 4 diseiplined and constructive eontrol environment i which all
emplovess understand thair roles and obligations.

Risk Exposure arising fram Measuremenl Management )

Credit risk Trade receivablcs, cash and cash equivalents, bank|Apeing wnalysis Diversification of bank deposits and credil
balances ather than cash and cush egquivalents and other limits and regular monitoring and follow
financial asscis s

Liguidity risk Dioreowings, trade pavahles and other fnancial liahilities |Cash Qow forecasts Av:liluhii'il}' ol conunitted credit lines und

horrowing lucilities.
Murkel risk — intercstrate | Long-lerm borrowings at variable rales Sensitivily analysis | Diversifieation of bureowings,
Credit risk

¢redit risk i (he risk of financial loss tn the Company if a customer or counterparly Lo a financial asset fails to meel s contractual obligations. The Company’s
exposure Lo eredil risk i3 influenced mainly by the individual eharaeteristics of each fnancial asset. The carrying amounts of financial assels represents the
muximun credit risk exposure,

A defanlt on a fnencial asset is when the counlerparly fails to make contractual puyments as per agreed terms. This delinition of default is delermined by
comsidering (e business covironment in which enlily operates and other masro-econemic faclors.

The Company bas a credit risk management policy in place fo limit credit losses due 10 non-performance of counlerpacties. The Company momilons its exXposure
o credil risk o a0 ongoing hasis. Assels are weilten off when there is no ressonzble expeetation of recovery. Where loans and receivables are wiitten off, the
Compaiy continnes to cngage in enforcement activity to amempt to recover Lhe dues.

Trowle receivabies

The Company closely monitors the credit-worthiness of the reccivables through inlerual systems that are configured to define credit limits of customers, therchy,
limiling e credit risk to pre-calenlated umounts. The Company uses a simplified approach (lifetime expected credit loss model) for the purpese of computation
ol expected credit logs for trade receivables. Expected ercdit losses are measured on colleetive hasis for each of the following categories |

Category Inputs for measurenent of E.‘.rpl;r.:h‘.rl eredil losses Assumptions

Non-government

Corporates Colleetion against oulslanding receivables in past yeurs | Trend of collections made by the Company over a periud of three
vears preceding halance sheel date and considering defaull to have
oceurred if receivahles are not colleoted for mors than two years.

Third parly udministeators  of| Collcetinn aguinst owstunding reccivables in pusi yeurs Tiade reccivables oulslanding for more than lhree years arc
insuTHRCE COmpanies considered imrecoveruble, Allowanee for expecled credit loss on
reecivables oulstanding for less than three years is recognised
based on expected deductions by thivd parly administratons,

Oihers Customer wise trade recaivahles and information specific allowance is made by assessing parly wisc outstanding
ohlained (hrough sales recovery follow ups L receivahles based on communication belween sales toam and
cuslimers.

Canh and cash equivalents and hank balances oifer tan cosh and cash equivalenls
Credit risk reluled 1o cash and cash cquivalenls and bank deposits is managed by only investing in deposits wilh highly rated banks and diversifying bank
deposiis and accounts in different banks. Credil risk is considered low hecause e Company deals with highly raled bauks.

Other financial azsers

Other Muancial asscts measured al smorlized cost includes scourity deposits, conlact assets and nther receivables. Credic risk related to these financial assets 15
munaged by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously, while at the same time intecnal control system are in place Lo ensure the amounts ure
within defined limits, Credil risk is considered low because the Company is in possession of the underlying asscr (in case of securily deposit) or s per lrade
expericnze {in case of unbilled revenne from patient and olher eceivables from revenus sharing arrangements). Furlher, lhe Company creates provision by
assessing individual financial asset for expectation of uny credil loss basis 12 month expected credit loss madel.

(Vi spoce hay been intenifonally left hlank)
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Credit risk exposure

i) Fapeoted credit loss for trade reeeivahles under simplified approsch f.e. provision matrix approach using historical trends,

As at 31 March 2024

Carrying amount {nel of impairment)

Mon-government
Particulars TPim poasly i .
Corporates administrators of Others T'ntal
B insurance companies
Gross carmying value 324 4.10 1.0 &.00
Less: Expecled credit loss {impairment) {2.01) {1.25) (0807 (6.668)
Carryving amount (net of impairment) 1163 .15 .84 1.34
As at 31 March 2023
Mon-governmend
Partivulars TIJJIl‘nl Lty .
Corporates administralors of Others T'ntal
insurance companies )
Gross carrying value 261 3.25 0,15 5,01
Less: Cxpecled credit loss (impairment) (2.61) {3.25] (015} (6.01)

Eaxpected credil losses for financial assels (measured at an amoont equal (o 12 months cupoeted credil losses)

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars

Estimated gross
carrying amount at

Expected credit
lnsses

Carryiong amount
el of impairment

default provision |
Cash and cush eguivalents 9.39 - 9.39
Danlk balances other than cash and cash cquivalents .22 - 0.2
Other linuncial assets 7103 = 7108
Az at 31 March 2023 :
Estimated gross . Carrying amount
Particulars carrying amounnt al E!.pf:‘ted exedit | e of impairment
default fass provision |
(ash and cash equivalents 7.04 - 7.04
Oither financial azsets 7.82 - 7.8
Reconciliation of expected eredil loss for trade receivables
Reconciliation af loss allowance Trade receivables
|Lnss allowanee as on 01 April 1022 )
Adlowance for expected credil loss .01
Laoss allowance as on 31 March 2023 601
Allowance for expecied credit loss .63
Luoss allowance as on 31 Murch 2024 G010
Expeeted credit loss for frade receivables as at 31 March 2024
Particular Less than & monihs 10 2 yéais 2 403 yicars Mlore thaw Tatal
G manths o 1 year 3 years
Gross carrying amount (a) 2,686 .33 - 240 161 4,00
Expeeted credit loss vate (%) 11 8a% 1EH100% - 100.00% 10:0.00% 74.00%
Expected credit losses () 032 {1.33 - 240 3.6l (il
Met trade receivables (a=h) 234 = - - - 2.3
Expected credit loss for teade receivables as at 31 Murel 2023
Particular Lieas Eham 5 mowitz 1 io 2 years 2o 3 years Mare than I'ntal
i 6 munihs to | year ik 2 3 years }
(aross carrying amount (n) - - 240 .41 - a0l
Expected credit loss rate (%) - - L0.00% 1000 - LD 0%
Fxpeeted credit losses (1) ” - 2.40 ial - 6.01

Med (rade receivables {a-h) %

&
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(H) Liguidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the bligations associated wilk ils Hnancial lighilities thal are setded by
delivering cash or another financial axsel. The Company's approach Lo managing liquidity fs o ensure as far as possible, that il will Bave sufticient lguidily to
mect its liabilities when they arc duc.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liguidily position and cash and cash eguivalents on the basis ol expected cash flows, The Company
fakes into aecount the liquidity of the merkel in which the Company operales.

Maturities of financial liabilitics
The tollowing are (he remaining contractal maturilies of financial liabilitics &l the reporting date. The amounls are gross and undizenunted, and include
estimaled interest payments, where applicable.

More than

As al 31 Mareh 2024 Upto 1 year 1 Lo 5 years 5 viars Tutal
Gorrowings* ) 109,75 753,50 1,396,067 2.262.01
Tracle payuhles 62.75 - - 62,75
|euse liabilities 5220 347.50 285755 3,287.25
Other financial liaklities 3735 794 .50 281.45
Total 29243 1,182.29 441912 5893406
Asat 31 March 2023 Upto 1 year L to 5 years Mate than Total
! 5 years
Horrowings® 5266 208.73 57851 33900
Trade payables 1.5 - - 0.594
Lease liahililies 7195 RELN 294756 3354918
Oliher Anancial liabilitics .70 &9.30 18470 25470
Tutal 126,23 6l17.72 3,710.77 4,454,721

# Tneludes eurrent maturilies of non-curcnt bormowings

The Company also has access o the following undravwm horrowing from banks at the end of the reporting period.

Parliculars Asat As at
. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
“Ferm loans from banks 5.00 30500
Working capital Loan 2150 30,00
216.50 355.00

{This space has beer intentionally lefi hlant)
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() MWarket risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in markel prices - such as foreign exchange rales and intevest rates — will affecl the Company’s income or the
value of its haldings of financial instruments, The ohjective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceplable paramelers, while optimizing the refum.

a) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk ihal the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becanse of changes in foreign exchanpe rales. “Lhe
Campany has limited exposure fram the international markel as the Company’s operations are in Tndia and eams leas than 10% ol ils revenue firom
foreign currency from infernalional patients. Also, capital expendilure includes capital goods purehased in foreign currency through the overseas
suppliets.

The Company is not exposad to the effects of fluctuation in the prevailing foreizn currency cxchangs rales on its financial position and cash Nows as
there is no foreign currency exposure a5 on eeporting date.

b Tnierest rate risk

Tnterest rate risk is the rislk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate beeause of changes in market interest rales.
The: Company™s interest rate risk arises from:-

- Borrowings which are made at market rale of interest at the time of borrowings.

- Bank deposils which are made at market rale of inlerest al the time of deposit,

This exposes the Company to cash flow interest rale risk.

. Az at Asat
Haposmrcin Infnenl Mo T e ) 31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
Iixed rate instrumenis
Financial asscts 022 -
Financial liabilities 67283 283.04
Variable rate instruments
Financial liabilitics 69831 38375

Cash Now sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
A reasonubly pussible change of 50 basis poinls in interest rates at the reporting dale would have increased (deareased) squily and profit or logs by
the amaunls shown below, This analysis assumes that all other vaviables, in parlicular loreign curvency exchange rales, remain constant,

Impact on (loss) or profil (nel of tax)

Effect in INR million

0 bp increase 5l by decrease
31 March 2024
Warinhle-rale instruments {2.58) 258
Cash flow sensitivity (ncl) a {2.58) 2.5%
31 Mareh 2023
Varinhle-rale instruments {1.43) 143
Cash flow sensitivity (nel) ) (1.43) 143
30, Capital management
Far the purpose af the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity eapital, share premium and all olher reserves attributable to the
equity halder, The primary objective of the Company’s capilal management is to maximize the shareholder value.
The Company monilors ils nel debt / equity ratio as well as compliance with financial covenants on regular basis.
Iarticulars Axal i
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total liabililies 2.682.42 I BSR.07
Less: eash and cish equivalents 3,39 04
MNet debst 1,673.02 [551.03
Tuliel equity (2.90) 54313
Met debt to cquily ralio i 921.17) 341

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions, No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing eapital during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,
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40.
I

n

1

1V

Revenue reluted disclosures
Disaggregation of revenue
Kevenue recogniscd mainly comprizes of heallheare services. Set out below is the disaggresation of the Company”s revenue from contracts will costomers:
Daseription For the year ended For the year ended
ey 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenuc tinm sale of services - Heallhcar:
Operating incume - in patient depariment 135.54 =
Oiperating income - out patient deparliment 94.35 &
Revenus oo sale of product - Pharmacy 195 -
Sub-total {4) 349.79 -
Revenue [rom rental services . 6375 allds
Sub-total (1) B 63,75 0l.45
Oiher operating revenns
Sponsorship income 0.5 -
Scrap sales Q.15 o5
Sub-total (C) .20 S
413.74 6,45

Tatal revenue (A+R+C)

Timing of revenne recognition
The following table provides information aboul ming of revenus recngnition:

For the year ended

For the year ended

A 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Al paint in tims 11445 N
Al point over time 210529 G045
Total revenue 413.74 645
Conlract balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contract wssels and contract liakilitics from contract with cuslomers: . =g
Particulars As at heat
31 March 2024 31 Maveh 2023
Contract assels- unbilled revenue (refer note 8) 512 -
Contract liahililies- advance from patients {refer nole 19) .52 405
Trede recervables {refer note 12) 234 i

Contract assed s the right to consideration in exchangs for goods ar services Lrans e
scrvices lo 4 customer for which the entily lng received consideration from the customer in advance, Contracl 455615
when the rights become unconditional and contract liabilities are recognised as and when he performence obligation is salisfied,

Significant changes in the contract balanees during the year ave us follows:

ol to the customer, Contract Liability s the entity's ohligation to transfer puods or
cunhilled receivahles) are lransfermed Lo receivables

As at Asat
b liahilitics - : A} ;
Cowlcast Babiliics... AAvMEE Tl AL 31 Maveh 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Opening balance of Contract linbilities - Advance from paticnls 4.3 4.0
Movemenl during the year {mef) 447 00
Closing halance of Contract liabilities - Advance from paticnds 8,52 4.05
As oal As at
‘act ARscts - M e :

Contract assets - Unbilled vevenue 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Opening balance of Contract assets - Unbilled vevenue 5

Add: addition during the year 5.12
Closing balanee of Contract assets - Unbilled revenue 512

The agpregate amount af ransaction price allocated to the performance obligations yet to complete) as at 31 March 2024 i TNR 852 million (31 March 2073 INE
4.05 million). This balanes represents the advance received from palients (gross) against healtheare services. The management expecls to torther bill and eolicel the

remaining bulange of tatal consideration in the coming periods. These balanees will be reengnised as revenue in subsequent pertod s per the policy

&

(This space has been iientionally Tefi blank)

of the Company.
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41. Ratio analysis and its elements
The following are analytical ratios for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2025

2 s For the year ended For the vear ended ;
Rastitilans ) Huke 31 March 2024 31 }irnmh 2023 Nadiinres
{a) Current ratio (0 .23 (.08 171.81% 1
{h) Dehl equity ratio (ii) -472.52 123 -38487.29% 2
{c) Debt sorviee coverage ralio {iif) -1.10 .05 ~204.35% 3
() Returm on equity ratio (%) {iv) S202.13% 1.05% - 19397 14%: 4
(2] lventory turnover ratia () 11.2% MA 100% 5
(1) Trade receivable turnover ratio {vi) 10084 A [00%: 3
(2} Trade pavable fumaover ratio {wii) 138 MA 100%: 4
() Met capital turnover ratio (viii) <213 -0.61 S25LT1% 6
(1) Met profit ratio (%) i) =132.01% A3.00%, =300, 54% 7
(71 Return an capital employed ratio (%) (%) =24 77% -0.48% -5043.54% 8
(k) Return on investment ratio (%) {xi) M A A

Reasons for variance

1 lnerease in currcnt asscts in currenl year has resulted into incrcasc in ratio.

2 Dheeresse in olher equily and increase in debt in eurrent year has resulied into decrease in ratio,

3 Decrease in earnings available for debl service and increase in debt service in current year has resulted into deeresse in ralio.

4 Tnerease in loss alter tax and decrcase in shavehalders equily in current year has resulted inlo decrease in ratio.

5 The company has commenced healthears operations in the current year,

& Tnerense in sales and decrease in working capifal in currenl year has resulted into decrease in ralia,

7 Decrease in carning bofore interest and taxes in cwrrent year has resulted inlo decrease in vatio,

& Dhecrense in earning before interest and taxes and increase in capital employed in current year has resulled into decrease in ratio,

Moiles =

{i} Current ratic = Current assets/ curvent liabilitics

{ii) Dbl Fyuily Ratio —~ Total Debt! sharcholders eouily

{iii) Debt service coverage ratio = Rarmings available for debt service! debt service (refer point (A) below)

{iv} Return om Bauily — Mel Profits after toees £ average Shareholder’s Tguity

{¥) Tnventory tuenover ratio = MNet Sales /[ closing invenlory

{vi} Trade reccivables furnover ratio = In patient department sales! average accounts receivable

(i) Trade payables turnover ratio = Net eredit purchases (eomprise of purchase of stock-in-irade) / average trade payable
{wiii) Met capital turnover ratio = Mel salesd working capital

(i) Wet Profit Ratio= Nel prolitf Met sales

{x) Relurn on capital employed (ROCE)= Faming helure interest and taxes’ Capital employed {reler point () below)
{xi) Return on investment is nol applicable to the Company as no investment is held by te Company.

Other explanatory points

{A) Earning available for debt service = Net profit after taxes + Non-cash aperating expenscs like depreciation and other amortizations + Interest |
other adjustments like loss on sale ol PIPE et

Debl service = Interest & Lease payments |+ Principal repayments

“Mel Profit after tax” means reported amonnt ol “Prafit / (loss) for the period™ and it does nol include items of other comprehensive income.

([} Capital employed = Tangible net worth + Tolal debl 1 Deferred tax liability

{Thix space has heen itentionally left blank)
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42, Capitalisation of expenditure incurred during construetion period
The costs that arc direelly altribulable W the acquisition of certain property, plant and equipment ave capitalised s under;

Particulars Asal AS
: : 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance 6583 -
Incwrred during the year:
Emplovees benefits cxpense - 42,56
Other expenses ) 1.6 23.29
Total 6745 (3.85
T.ess: Dxpenses capitalised to property, plant and eguipment during the year (67.43) ) =
Carried forward to next financial year as parl of capital-worl in progress ) - 65.85

{Thiz space has been intentionaly lefi dank)
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43, Other statutory information

44,

a) The Company docs not have any hensmi properly and no proceedings have boen initiated or pending againsl the Company for holding any benami propesty, under
the Denami Transactions {rohibitions) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988} and the reles made thereunder,

b) The Company does not have any charge on assets which is vef to he regisiered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

€] The Company has not advanced or provided loan o or iovested funds in any entities including foreign entities {Intcrmediaries) or 1o any wher persons, with the
understanding that the intermediary shall:
(1) direcily or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entilies idenlified in any manner whatsoever by or on hehal T ol the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(i) provide any guarantes, scourity or the ke o or un behiall of the ultimate benetficiaries

d} The Company has nol received any fund friom any persons or entities, ncluding foreign entitics (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in wriling
or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(i} directly or indircetly lend or invest in other persons or entilies ideatificd in any manner whelsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ulimaele Deneliciarics)
(i1} provicde any goaranlee, security o the like on behalf of the ultimale beneliciaries,

&) The Company has nol underlaken any transaction which is not recorded n the hooks of aceounts that s been surrendered or diselosed as income during the year in
the tax asscssments under the Income Tax Acl, 1961 (such as, scarch or survey or any olher relevant provisions of the Income Tax Acl, [961).

My The Company has not traded o invested in erypto corrency or virlual currency during the current and previous Gnancial year.

) The Company hus nol heen declared a "Willful Detaulter' by any hank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consertium thereof, in
accordance with the guidelines on willul defaulter issucd by the Reserve Bank of India.

) The Company has complicd with the number of layers preseribed under clavse (87) of seetion 2 of the Act read with Companics (Restriction on number of Tayees)
Rules, 2017.

i) The Company did nol have any aansactions with companics struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Aet, 2013 or seclion 560 of Companics Adt, 1956
during the financial year.

i1 The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment {including right-of-use assets) or intangible assels or both during the corrent or previous periods.

k) The Company has nol entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on curent or presions fAnencial year.

“The Minisiry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new reyuirement for companics under the provise to Rule 3(1) of the Companics {Accounts) Rules, 2014
inserted by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 reguiring compenies which uses aceounting software for mainleining its books of accounl, shall use
only such sccounling suflware which has a feature of recording audit trail ol each and every transaction, ereating an edil log of ezch change made in the books of
aceaunt along with the dele when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

The Company uses acoounling suflware for maintcnance of accounting snd operational records. Once the financial entries are pusted in such software, no changes
arc allowed in such posted entries. Also, in case of cancellationfreversal of such posled eniries, separate entrics are ereated in Lthe application. Additionally, the
detailed log of events for master dala changes are enabled at application level,

The audit trail feature was not enahled at the database level tor accounting sofiware, o log uny direct data changes. Further, the databuse of oue of the accounting
software is operated by a third-party snflware service provider and the availability of andit trail (edit logs) at the databasc level are nat covered in the ‘Independent
Service Auditor’s Assurance Report on the Description of Contols, their Design and Operating Elfecliveness’ ('Type 2 report” issoed in secordance with ISAE 3000
(Revised), Assurance Engagements Other than Awdils or Reviews of Historical Finaneial Information). We have advised the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERIY
service provider to include the database of andit trail funclionality in the next year's Tvpe 2 report.

Fur anather accounting software used for maintenance of recunds for cne location did net have audit trail maintained for pedod 01 April 2023 to 01 June 2023
Further lor the remaining period it maintains andit trail, however, il does not capture the username of person who made the changes.

Diuring the current finansial vear, the Company has incurred a Joss of INR 546.23 million (31 March 2023: profit of INE. 38.07 million) and negalive cash flow from
uperations of INR. 160,18 million (31 March 2023: positive cash fow from operations of INK 18098 million) and has accummlated losses of TNR 402.90 million
undd negative working capital of MR 194,43 million as al year end (31 March 2023: INK 9991 million). Fowever, the Company has received a leller of support
from the Tolding Company te meet the shortfall in its fund requirements, if any, for a period of nod less than 12 months from the date of financial closwe of
accounts of the Company for the vear cnded 31 March 2024, (o ensure that the Company continue on g geing condcem basis for next one year from the date of
finsmeial closure of the accounts of the Company, Aceordingly, the management belicves that the company shall be able 1o realize its assets and discharge ils
liahilities as and when they fall due for payment in the normal course of husiness and has propared these financial sialements on a going concern basis,

The notes to the finaneinl statement including material accounting policy information and other explanatary information are an inlegral part of the financial
Ag per our report of even dale allached

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLE For and on behalf of Hoard of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Plus Medicare IMospitals Private Limited
Firm Kegistration Mo 00 10TANM300013

m

Tarun Gupta Dr. Santy Mecliyanickal Sajan Mikhil Sharm:
lartner ¥} Director Diirector
hdembership Mo, 507852 13N DRG3F005 13N 196R%292

"

Manmaohan Clippa rat Suchdey
CFO Confpany Secredary
Membership no. Add4503

Place: Guregram Place: Gurugram
Deate: 13 June 2024 Iate: 13 June 2024



